
? ' ' 
,TATE oF NEW MExlco

COUNTY OF CURRY

CITY OFTEXICO

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

0212712024

The Texico City Council met in a regular session on Tuesday, February 27,2024, at 6:30 p.m. at Texico
Community Center in full compliance with the laws of the State of New Mexico and ordinances and
resolutions of said City with the following members present:

Mayor Deborah Autrey
Council Members Oran Jay Autrey

Max Carter
Sharon Askew
Patricia Natividad

Also Present Connie S. Harrison, City Clerk
Karla Barela, Utility Clerk
Elpidia Solis, Deputy City Clerk
Missy Peacock, Finance
Doug Bowman, Police Chief
Marion Rutter, City Attorney
Diane Queener, Fire Chief
Kenneth Sena, Public Works
Rob Pomper, Stateline Tribune
Jeff Queener, Fire Department
Eliaser Natividad
Marcia Neavell
Dan Pearce

Patrick Lucero, Xcel

lnvocation was given by a Councilwoman Askew.

A roll call was given for the Mayor and Council Members present:

Max Carter Present
Patricia Natividad Present
Mayor Autrey Present
Oran Jay Autrey Present
Councilwoman Askew Present

Mayor Autrey requested from Attorney Rutter that she allow Kenneth Sena, Public Works Supervisor to
speak after the minutes are approved due to an illness in his family. Mr. Rutter asked if this was an

action item and Mayor Autrey responded no it was not. Mr. Rutter then stated to go ahead.

Mayor Autrey proceeded to ask Mr. Sena to speak before the minutes were heard. Before he spoke the
Mayor wanted to preface that she was not micromanaging. There are three new positions in the office
from what the policy states of having two and she would like to know and has been questioned why and

' who is doing what?

n Mr. Sena described his job description as follows:
He was hired as the Public Works Supervisor



He monitors the sewer plant twice daily, making sure the equipment is running properly and that the

errators are not clogged up. He records information from the SCADA system even though EPCOR does

too but likes to have records for himself. The Mayor asked, "Are you there when EPCOR is there" and

Mr. Sena replied no he was not as he did not know what time EPCOR came to read the data. Mr. Sena is

there every morning between 7 to 8 and about 45 minutes before going home in the evenings.

He checks on the cemetery daily, making sure the trash is emptied and the grounds are picked up.

He has recently gotten quotes on the sprayer and is getting quotes on chemical.

He is busy getting ready for the season by working on the fogger, doing maintenance on the lawn

mowers and shredder, etc.

With the Redistribution Center being reopened he has been busy meeting customers there to unlock

and lock the gate. The Mayor asked if there had been many calls and Mr. Sena responded several.

Mr. Sena stated he has been picking up the trash that he can in the alleys, fixing holes in the alleys,

catching stray animals, etc.
The Mayor stated "So, you find yourself terribly busy. I appreciate you going through the alleys and

doing what you can."

Mayor Autrey asked for a motion to approve the minutes of January 23,2024. The City Clerk stated

these Were asked to be moved to the end of the January 23,2024, meeting and they were never gotten

back to approve during that meeting. Mayor Autrey stated that the minutes reflected her name as

Mayor Pro-Tem asking for a motion to approve the minutes of January 23 and it should read Mayor Pro-

Tem Carter as she was not appointed Mayor until later. A motion was made by Councilman Autrey to

approve the minutes of January 23'd with the changes to be made and Councilwoman Natividad

seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Mayor Autrey asked for a motion to approve the minutes of February L3,2024. Mayor Autrey asked if
under New Business Letter A. Old Maintenance Vehicles, whether it should be changed to reflect that it
was verified the year of the pickup to be removed is the 2010 Chevy. The City Clerk stated that this was

under Old Business for this current meeting of February 27,2024.
Councilman Autrey stated that under New Business Letter I Cemetery Well, this should read that they hit

water at 375 feet not 7 to 8 feet as it reads currently. A motion was made by Councilwoman Natividad

to approve the minutes of February 13th with the changes to be made and Councilwoman Askew

seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

OLD BUSINESS:

A. Ute Water Project - Councilman Carter stated he had nothing to report.
B. Water Conservation - Mark Huerta with EPCOR presented the Mayor and Council with

information stating that the total pumping was 71,000 gallons per day and that the city was

currently at 49% pumping capacity. Mayor Autrey asked Mr. Huerta to explain this, and he

stated that the way it was calculated was by taking the daily usage that was able to pump

minus the pumping per day which gave them the 49% pumping capacity.

He stated that the stripping tower associated with the KKR well that was installed many

years ago to treat VOC (Carbon Tetrachloride). After reviewing historical data from the
NMED database and additional tests performed by EPCOR it was determined that the
treatment was no longer needed. EPCOR had repaired two main line breaks and answered

approximately thirty-five service calls. They are doing daily reports on wastewater

treatment. He mentioned that two members of EPCOR were coming to Clovis from Arizona

and would be here to work with Kenneth on Wednesday and Thursday, February 28th and

29th, with a meeting scheduled for Thursday the 29th with the Mayor and Council.

Fire Chief Queener asked about maintaining the fire hydrants in the city and Mr. Huerta

assured her that this would be done by EPCOR and that they currently do for the City of
Clovis.



!'
C. Municipal Judge - Mayor Autrey stated that in the last Council meeting it was stated that a

Ietter had been received by Virginia Loera from PERA stating they would recognize her being

appointed the same as being elected, therefore she can be nominated for the appointment
of Municipal Judge. The Mayor requested that a copy of the letter from PERA be kept in her

A file she then stated that she would entertain a motion to nominate Virgina Loera as

MunicipalJudge. Councilwoman Askew made a motion to appoint Virgina Loera as the
MunicipalJudge and Councilwoman Natividad seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

D. Public Wolks Vehicle - Chief Bowman stated that he did check, and it was the 2010 Chevy

vehicle that needs to be removed. Darrell Stanton drove this and when leaving Tommy
Nieto began driving it. A motion to approve the removal of the 2010 Chevy was made by

Councilman Autrey and seconded by Councilwoman Askew.
E. Keys to Community Center - Mayor Autrey stated that in the last Council meeting it was

discussed about others having keys to the Community Center in case of emergencies so

there was access to use for the community as shelter, she gave the example of Goliath a few
years ago. She recommended that the Mayor, Fire Chief and one other have keys.

Councilwoman Natividad suggested Councilwoman Askew have one as well. lt was noted
that this would now be six (6) keys given out for the Community Center, Chief Bowman,

PW's Supervisor Sena, City Hall, Mayor Autrey, Chief Queener and Councilwoman Askew.

Record of this will be kept at City Hall. A motion was made by Councilman Autrey for the
three suggested by the Mayor to have keys and Councilwoman Natividad seconded the
motion. Motion passed 4-0.

F. Cemetery Electricity Payment - Mayor Autrey asked if Mr. Pearce or Ms. Leavell, who were
both present, would like to comment on this. She stated that the bills were not that high,

and the city should pay them. Mr. Pearce stated that is what the Cemetery Board is

requesting. Ms. Leavell inquired about the well meter electricity and Councilman Autrey
responded that the fuse needed to be replaced. The other meter for the Gazebo for Mr.A ffiffiTiff1fl".il:n:,:ffii:IHff1,1il'ffiI"JilJ::il"J;ffffi:il'H[tr;:;
the minimum amount, if removed and decided they wanted a meter placed later, the city
would have to pay a fee to have this done. A motion was made by Councilwoman Askew for
the city to pay the cemetery electricity and a motion was seconded by Councilwoman
Askew. Motion passed 4-0.

G. Personnel Board - Mayor Autrey stated she would like to appoint one Council member,
Councilwoman Askew and one citizen, Virginia Loera to the Board and the Mayor will be the
Personnel Director. Councilman Autrey made a motion to approve these recommendations
and Councilwoman Natividad seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

H. Employee Bonding - The City Clerk stated she had verified that Elpidia Solis, Missy Peacock,

Karla Barela, and herself were all bonded.
l. PERA information -The City Clerk presented information to the Mayor and the Council on

upgrading to a higher Tier for the employees and the Police Chief. She stated that it was the
police department that had the most concern. lt would help in hiring since most of the
officers applying come from a municipality or local government who are on a higher Tier and

by coming to a lower Tier, as Texico is, would be a detriment to their retirement. This was

tabled until more information could be brought to the Mayor and Council. The Mayor did

request that a breakdown of what the employees and Police Chief are currently paying as

well as the city.

New Business:

A. Jason Burns SERTPO - Councilman Autrey stated that she and Ms. Harrison had met with Jason

Burns, Road Superintendent for Eddy County, and the Chairman of SERTPO, which is the clearing
house of monies for the NMDOT. We discussed the matching funds for all the current grants

which total S133,000.00 and the possibility of turning back the grant for St2S,000.00 that
monies have not been allocated for. Mr. Burns looked at the current pond project that has been



underway for approximately four years. He discussed the drainage on Hereford, cutting the
ditches down, cutting the grass on Hereford and placing French drainage. The Mayor noted that
in today's world with the current cost, the City of Texico was looking at a price of 52,000,000.00
to continue with the pond project and that is not going to get anywhere with the 5350,000.00
the city has grants for. Mr. Burns is responsible for writing the last grant received in the amount
of 5800,000.00 with a match of 540,000.00. This grant was eligible for a match waiver and a

letter was sent to the former Mayor stating the requests for this was to be in no later than
September 28,2023. This letter was never received by the City Clerk until it was emailed to her
after the fact by NMDOT. The Mayor and Councilwoman Natividad are meeting with the
Commissioner and Engineer of NMDOT District 2 and Mr. Burns in Roswell on Wednesday,

February 28,2024.They are going to talk to the Commissioner about getting both the matches

waived for the Stzs,ooo (25%l grant and the 580,000 (5%) grants.

Desert West - Mayor Autrey stated she had spoken with Rick Lovato of Desert West and had

received a proposal from them. Desert West is a member of CES, so a bid is not necessary. The

amount of the proposal is 5885,581.38, yet after the Mayor and Mr. Lovato spoke again, he

stated if he only did a single pin and not a double pin the cost could be as low as half of the
original proposal.

Texico Farwell Bridge -The City Clerk was unable to hear any of this conversation on the
recorder due to background noise and others speaking over Chief Queener. She did however get
recorded the Mayor stating that during the presentation they kept saying "if they get the
funding."
Missy Peacock - Ms. Peacock describe her job description as follows:
She is currently the lT, Finance and PR Specialist. As an lT specialist her tasks include systems

administration, user support, software updates, upgrades, and rybersecurity.
Her payroll responsibilities include payroll processing, recordkeeping, and benefits. ln

accounting she works with general ledger, compliance, and audits. She also is the HR specialist

for the city holding a master's in human resources and a minor in computer information science.

She stated that my ability to seamlessly integrate lT, payroll, and accounting functions by

maintaining accurate records, ensuring compliance, and leveraging technology effectively
contributes significantly to the City of Texico's overall success.

FINANCE:

A. Ms. Harrison stated she did not have printouts for the financial report as she has not had

access to the internet to bring up the bank or process checks.

B. Ms. Harrison will need approval of the payments made by ACH that are presented.

Councilwoman Askew made a motion to approve the statements and Councilman Carter

seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.
C. DFA - Michael Steininger

Mr. Steininger with DFA was unable to attend the meeting as he and his wife are in Arizona at
the Mayo Clinic, hopefully some good answers regarding her health. He will continue to work
on what he can while sitting in the hospital and he has left work to be done while he is away.

D. 2022 Audit - Pam Rice

Pam Rice was unable to attend the meeting. She continues to work from Albuquerque
requesting information daily to be scanned and emailed to her.

Ms. Harrison gave information on the NM Clean and Beautiful Grant that is now available to
apply for. She explained that this grant does have a 25Yo match, yet the match can be in-kind,
meaning donations, employees working on the grant, etc. these amounts can be used towards

the25% match. There are severalopportunities with this grant, planting, jobs foryouth, walking

trails and more. She stated it was a simple grant to process.

B.

c.

D.



ACTION ITEMS:

A. Ordinance No. 202 Board of Trustees 12 C-5 - Mr. Rutter iequested this be put on the next
agenda.

B. Ordinance No. 388 Xcel Energy - City Attorney Marion Rutter explained this was a 25-year term
with Xcel regarding the Franchise Fee. A motion was made by Councilman Autrey and seconded

by Councilwoman Askew. A roll call vote was called by the City Clerk:

Councilman Carter
Councilwoman Natividad
Councilwoman Askew

Yes

Yes

Yes

Councilman Autrey Yes

Republic Services - City Attorney Marion Rutter stated that the terms had been changed to
reflect a five (5) year term beginning from the start of the one not signed, therefore the
expiration date is August 37,2025. The City can give a written 60-day notice if wanting to cancel

the contract.
Elpidia Solis, who works with Republic Services when issues arise, asked questions, and had

suggestions for Mr. Rutter regarding changes to the contract before it being approved by the
Council. She stated that one of the suggestions was the fact that residents share containers in

the alley and when one is overflowing there is no way to tell which resident is responsible. She

has spoken with Republic about this and each month she speaks with them, and they have

agreed to remove the charges on the invoice for the City of Texico. Mr. Rutter stated he thought
this should be included on Exhibit A1. Ms. Solis continued page 2 (8.1) Businesses are counted
by containers and residents are counted by actual resident not container. She also mentioned
that Republic will not view Mesquite Village as residential, which is how they would like it to be.

Ms. Solis feels it is better value for Mesquite Village to continue to be billed as commercial. Mr.
Rutter stated that he would call Ms. Solis and go over the contract with her. He asked that this
be tabled untilthe next meeting.
Roof Quotes - tabled for March 12th Council Meeting
HVAC System Quotes - tabled for March 12th Council Meeting
Street Sweeper Quotes - After discussion of the quotes received for the repair of the street
sweeper:

Western Equipment S18,957.35 (577,457 .35 w/cores before tax)
R&D Service Center S18,808.62
Chris's Diesel Service S14,260.00

a motion was made by Councilman Autrey and seconded by Councilman Carter to approve the

Quote from Chris's Diesel for the repair of the street sweeper in the amount of 514250.00.
Motion passed 4-0.

REPORTS OF PERSONNEL AND DEPARTMENTS:

Dan Pearce would like to recommend the following for the Pavilion Board Members:
Allen Myers Chairman
Marcia Leavell Member
Oran Jay AutreyMember
Dwain Hill Member
Sam Jenkins Member

This will be placed on the March 12th Council Meeting

Missy Peacock stated that the representatives from Tyler will be here within a month to start the new

finance system.

Rob Pomper with State Line Tribune wanted to make the council aware of the potential of voting signs

be placed during elections. He stated the lawn at the courthouse in Farwell was covered with them. Ms.

Harrison stated that lately they have had several residents coming into the office asking about the
elections and when the council meetings are.

c.

D.

E.

F.



Chief Queener stated that their inspection went well with Mr. Evans with the State Fire Marshal's office.

Mr. Evans gave them ideas of improving training documentation and suggested they purchase Vector
Solutions or any other training computerized program. Vector Solutions has everything we would need.

He also suggested having a second sign-in sheet at the fire department for each time people sign as to
what they are working on such as cleaning or picking up, etc. He stated they could go from an ISO rating

three very easily and possibly even a 2. With a lower ISO rating, homeowners' insurance in Texico would
go down, which is better for our community.

A motion was made by Councilman Carter and seconded by Councilwoman Natividad to adjourn the
meeting at 8:45 p.m. Motion passed 4-0.

Connie S. Harrison, City Clerk


